
South Somerset 
District Council

Thursday 13th December 2018

7.30 pm

Council Chamber
Council Offices
Brympton Way
Yeovil, BA20 2HT

(disabled access and a hearing loop are available at this meeting venue)  

All members of Council are requested to attend this meeting:

If you would like any further information on the items to be discussed, please contact the 
Democratic Services Specialist on 01935 462148 or democracy@southsomerset.gov.uk

This Agenda was issued on Wednesday 5 December 2018.

Alex Parmley, Chief Executive Officer

This information is also available on our website
www.southsomerset.gov.uk and via the mod.gov app

Public Document Pack



South Somerset District Council Membership
Chairman: Tony Capozzoli
Vice-chairman: Mike Best

Clare Paul
Jason Baker
Cathy Bakewell
Marcus Barrett
Mike Beech
Neil Bloomfield
Amanda Broom
Dave Bulmer
Hayward Burt
John Clark
Nick Colbert
Adam Dance
Gye Dibben
Sarah Dyke
John Field
Nigel Gage
Carol Goodall
Anna Groskop
Peter Gubbins
Henry Hobhouse

Kaysar Hussain
Val Keitch
Andy Kendall
Jenny Kenton
Mike Lewis
Sarah Lindsay
Mike Lock
Tony Lock
Paul Maxwell
Sam McAllister
Graham Middleton
David Norris
Graham Oakes
Sue Osborne
Tiffany Osborne
Stephen Page
Ric Pallister
Crispin Raikes
Wes Read
David Recardo

Jo Roundell Greene
Dean Ruddle
Sylvia Seal
Gina Seaton
Peter Seib
Garry Shortland
Angie Singleton
Alan Smith
Sue Steele
Rob Stickland
Gerard Tucker
Andrew Turpin
Linda Vijeh
Martin Wale
William Wallace
Nick Weeks
Colin Winder
Derek Yeomans

Information for the Public 
The meetings of the full Council, comprising all 60 members of South Somerset District Council, 
are held at least 6 times a year. The full Council approves the Council’s budget and the major 
policies which comprise the Council’s policy framework.  Other decisions which the full Council 
has to take include appointing the Leader of the Council, members of the District Executive, 
other Council Committees and approving the Council’s Constitution (which details how the 
Council works including the scheme allocating decisions and Council functions to committees 
and officers).
 
Members of the Public are able to:-

 attend meetings of the Council and its committees such as Area Committees, District 
Executive, except where, for example, personal or confidential matters are being 
discussed;

 speak at Area Committees, District Executive and Council meetings;

 see reports and background papers, and any record of decisions made by the Council and 
Executive;

 find out, from the Executive Forward Plan, what major decisions are to be decided by the 
District Executive.

Meetings of the Council are scheduled to be held monthly at 7.30 p.m. on the third Thursday of 
the month in the Council Offices, Brympton Way although some dates are only reserve dates 
and may not be needed.



The agenda, minutes and the timetable for council meetings are published on the Council’s 
website – www.southsomerset.gov.uk/councillors-and-democracy/meetings-and-decisions

Agendas and minutes can also be viewed via the mod.gov app (free) available for iPads and 
Android devices. Search for ‘mod.gov’ in the app store for your device and select ‘South 
Somerset’ from the list of publishers and then select the committees of interest. A wi-fi signal will 
be required for a very short time to download an agenda but once downloaded, documents will 
be viewable offline.

The Council’s corporate aims which guide the work of the Council are set out below.

Further information can be obtained by contacting the agenda co-ordinator named on the front 
page.

South Somerset District Council - Council Aims

South Somerset will be a confident, resilient and flexible organisation, protecting and improving 
core services, delivering public priorities and acting in the best long-term interests of the district.  
We will:

 Protect core services to the public by reducing costs and seeking income generation.
 Increase the focus on Jobs and Economic Development.
 Protect and enhance the quality of our environment.
 Enable housing to meet all needs.
 Improve health and reduce health inequalities.

Ordnance Survey mapping/map data included within this publication is provided by South Somerset District 
Council under licence from the Ordnance Survey in order to fulfil its public function to undertake its statutory 
functions on behalf of the district.  Persons viewing this mapping should contact Ordnance Survey copyright for 
advice where they wish to licence Ordnance Survey mapping/map data for their own use. South Somerset 
District Council - LA100019471 - 2018.



South Somerset District Council
Thursday 13 December 2018

Agenda

1.  Apologies for Absence 

2.  Minutes 

To approve and sign the minutes of the previous meeting held on Thursday, 15th November 
2018.

3.  Declarations of Interest 

In accordance with the Council's current Code of Conduct (as amended 26 February 2015), 
which includes all the provisions relating to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI), personal and 
prejudicial interests, Members are asked to declare any DPI and also any personal interests 
(and whether or not such personal interests are also "prejudicial") in relation to any matter on the 
Agenda for this meeting. 

Members are reminded that they need to declare the fact that they are also a member of a 
County, Town or Parish Council as a Personal Interest.  Where you are also a member of 
Somerset County Council and/or a Town or Parish Council within South Somerset you must 
declare a prejudicial interest in any business on the agenda where there is a financial benefit or 
gain or advantage to Somerset County Council and/or a Town or Parish Council which would be 
at the cost or to the financial disadvantage of South Somerset District Council.  

4.  Public Question Time 

5.  Chairman's Announcements 

Items for Discussion

6.  Chairman's Engagements (Page 5)

7.  Presentation from the Income Generation Board (Page 6)

8.  Heart of the South West (HotSW) - Joint Committee - Council Update (Pages 7 
- 17)

9.  Report of Executive Decisions (Pages 18 - 20)

10.  Motions 

There were no Motions submitted by Members.

11.  Questions Under Procedure Rule 10 

There were no questions submitted under Procedure Rule 10.

12.  Date of Next Meeting (Page 21)



Chairman’s Engagements

6th November

At the invitation of HM Lord-Lieutenant of Somerset, the Vice-Chairman attended a ‘Somerset 
Remembers’ service at Wells Cathedral. 

9th November

At the invite of the Chairman of North Somerset Council, the Vice Chairman and his wife 
attended the winter carnival. 

11th November

The Chairman attended a Remembrance Day service in Yeovil at the invitation of Yeovil Town 
Council. He also attended a second service held at Yeovil Cemetery at the invite of the Royal 
British Legion. 

The Vice Chairman attended the Remembrance Day service in Ilminster. 

13th November

At the invite of the Mayor of Yeovil, the Chairman attended the Civic Day event, which included 
a visit to Leonardo Helicopters and a tour of the Innovation Centre. 

24th November

The Vice-Chairman attended the annual Bloodwise Social Evening.

7th December

At the invitation of the Mayor of Ilminster, the Chairman and his wife will attend a production of 
‘David Copperfield’ performed by Ilminster Entertainments Society.

8th December

The Vice-Chairman will be attending the Aladdin Gala Night at The Octagon Theatre.

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



Presentation from the Income Generation Board

Executive Portfolio Holder: Henry Hobhouse, Property, Climate Change & Income Generation
Director: Clare Pestell, Commercial Services and Income Generation
Lead Officer: James Divall, Income Opportunity Development Manager
Contact Details: james.divall@southsomerset.gov.uk or (01935) 462261

James Divall, Income Opportunity Development Manager, will provide a presentation on the 
recent work of the Income Generation Board and the Income Opportunity Development 
Managers followed by a question and answer session.  

Page 6

Agenda Item 7



Heart of the South West (HotSW) – Joint Committee – Council 
Update

Executive Portfolio Holder: Councillor Val Keitch, Strategy and Policy
Chief Executive: Alex Parmley, Chief Executive 
Director: Netta Meadows, Strategy and Support Services
Contact Details:
Report Author:

netta.meadows@southsomerset.gov.uk or  01935 462200
Julian Gale, Monitoring Officer, Somerset County Council

1. Introduction

1.1 In January 2018, the HotSW Joint Committee was formally established by the councils and 
organisations involved since 2015 in the devolution partnership. The Committee is tasked 
with improving productivity across the HotSW area in collaboration with the HotSW LEP and 
other organisations as necessary.   

  
1.2 The Committee has met formally three times in 2018, in March, June and October.   In 

addition to this there is a management structure that sits behind the Committee which 
involves Chief Executives and senior officers from across the partnership.  The Committee is 
chaired by Cllr David Fothergill, Leader of Somerset County Council and the Vice-Chair is 
Cllr John Tucker, Leader of South Hams District Council. 

1.3 This report summarises the progress made by the Committee over recent months and sets 
out next steps for the coming months.

Recommendations

That Council:

a) Note the progress report setting out the work of the Heart of the South West (HotSW) Joint 
Committee since its establishment in March 2018;

b) Agree to delegate the development and endorsement of the HotSW Local Industrial 
Strategy (LIS) to the HotSW Joint Committee (noting that final approval of the HotSWLIS 
rests with the HotSW Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) and the Government);

c) Note the Budget statement for 2018/19 set out in Appendix B, and that in accordance with 
the decisions taken at the time the Committee was established, the Council will be asked 
to make an annual budgetary provision to meet the support costs of the Joint Committee 
in line with the 2018/19 contribution.  Final clarification on any additional 2019/20 budget 
requirement will be provided following the completion of the review of the Joint 
Committee’s role, function and management support arrangements and development of 
its work programme for 2019/20;

d) Agree the Budget and Cost-sharing Agreement set out in Appendix B to this report.

2. Key achievements

2.1 At each of the meetings the Committee has been briefed on recent inward investment 
successes achieved through the work of the local authorities.   

(a) Influencing government

Page 7

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Steve.brewer@southsomerset.gov.uk


The partnership’s original focus in 2015 was to explore opportunities on offer through 
devolution to improve productivity. Since the Committee was created the influencing role 
has continued to be central to the work of the Joint Committee and recent months have 
seen successes in this area. Government policy changes and Brexit have required the 
partnership to be flexible to present a united front to Government and respond to the 
changes. As an example, the Government has increasingly moved away from its 
devolution policy approach of 2015 and the partnership is now engaged in more flexible 
and targeted dialogues with Government. This approach is proving successful so 
demonstrating the benefits of presenting a single compelling partnership vision between 
the business and public sectors. The Committee is keen to demonstrate its ability to deliver 
Government objectives as well as local priorities so accessing help beyond our boundaries 
is critical to the success of the partnership. It is already apparent that the Joint 
Committee/LEP Partnership carries a critical mass that the Government is responding to 
through policy announcements and on-going dialogue with Government officials. The most 
significant announcement is the recent inclusion of the HotSW LEP area in wave 2 of 
developing Local Industrial Strategies (LIS).  This success is due in large part to the close 
alignment of the Joint Committee and the LEP on the Productivity Strategy [see (b) below].  
Much of the activity detailed below has resulted directly from discussions with 
Government.  

 
(b) Approval of the HotSW Productivity Strategy

(i) In March the Committee and the LEP Board agreed a challenging HotSW Productivity 
Strategy which set an ambition of “Doubling the size of the Heart of the South West’s 
economy over 20 years” with a vision of “Productivity and prosperity for all”.   

(ii) The Strategy identifies three strategic themes to improve productivity by 
strengthening and developing: 

a. the leadership and ideas within businesses in our area
b. the housing, connectivity and infrastructure our people and businesses rely on 

for living, moving goods, accessing jobs and training, and exploiting new 
opportunities. 

c. the ability of people in our area to work, learn and improve their skills in a 
rapidly changing global economy, and to maximise their economic potential.

(iii) In addition, there are three cross-cutting themes, referred to throughout the Strategy:
a. Inclusive growth for our people, communities and places
b. Capitalising on our distinctive assets
c. Maximising the potential from digital technology

The Strategy can be viewed at:
https://heartofswlep.co.uk/about-the-lep/how-we-work/productivity-strategy/

(c) Endorsement of the Delivery Plan.   This document is key to the delivery of the Productivity 
Strategy and will be further developed as explained below. It is a live action plan that will 
be used to track performance locally and may also form the basis of annual progress 
reports to Government, as required under the recent national review of LEPs. It is broadly 
divided into two sections – a ‘core offer’ focussing on programmes that deliver Business 
Support and Employment and Skills, as well as ‘enablers’ including housing delivery, 
transport, and other infrastructure that is essential to support economic growth. These 
activities apply across the whole of the HotSW area.  A further section focuses on 
programmes of activity linked to the agreed set of ‘opportunities’ that are specific to the 
HotSW area. The Plan incorporates  current as well as future, planned activity, and is 
being produced in stages depending on how well developed the programmes of activity 
for each theme are.  The current version features the opportunities that are at the most 
advanced stage, namely: Digital (Photonics); Advanced Engineering (marine and 
nuclear); High Value Tourism; Farming, Fishing and Food.  By spring 2019 it will be 
expanded to include: Healthy Ageing; further Digital (Creative and Big Data); Advanced 
Engineering (aerospace); Construction; and Defence.  Place markers have also been 

Page 8

https://heartofswlep.co.uk/about-the-lep/how-we-work/productivity-strategy/


included for inclusive growth and natural capital to be developed as part of the next phase 
of work.   The current version of the Delivery Plan can be viewed at:
http://www.hotswjointcommittee.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/HotSW-Draft-
Delivery-Plan-October-2018.pdf

(d) An Opportunities Prospectus has been extracted from the Delivery Plan and will be used 
with local MPs, Ministers and senior Government officials as part of continuing to raise the 
profile of the HotSW area at a critical time ahead of the 2019 Spending Review and the 
anticipated launch of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund towards the end of 2019. The 
document will be circulated to MPs prior to the Chancellor’s autumn statement as part of 
the influencing approach.  To ensure that the Prospectus document has some longevity, 
the key strategic ‘asks’ of Government have been set out in a covering letter, jointly signed 
by the Chairs of the Joint Committee and the LEP.  As we develop the Delivery Plan, 
further asks will emerge and be submitted to Ministers. The list of asks submitted in 
October is attached as Appendix A to this report.  The Prospectus document can be 
viewed at:
http://www.hotswjointcommittee.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/HotSW-
Opportunities-Prospectus-October-2018.pdf

(e) Housing is a key enabling opportunity for the Joint Committee. Following a housing audit 
to gauge Local Plan progress on targets and delivery rates, a HotSW Housing Summit 
was held in September with key agencies including Homes England.  The outcome of this 
successful event was an agreement to work closely with Homes England to develop a 
bespoke package of offers and asks with Government which will help us to successfully 
deliver the ambitious housing programmes we have across our area.  A Housing Sector 
Task Force of strategic leaders and officers has been established to develop our 
proposition to Government and to work with Homes England which will report to the Joint 
Committee.

(f) National Infrastructure Commission (NIC)
The Joint Committee is seeking to secure a growth corridor study following helpful 
discussions with the NIC. Initial discussions with the Chair of the Commission were well 
received and the Joint Committee was encouraged to submit a business case to the 
Chancellor who will ultimately make a decision as to whether to fund a study.  A proposal 
was submitted to the Chancellor in October. The study would be similar to the one 
conducted by the NIC for Cambridge-Milton Keynes-Oxford. It would help the HotSW 
partnership to better understand the constraints to higher levels of productivity by 
highlighting where investment in strategic infrastructure could unlock faster growth over 
the long term. The initial focus for the study would be along the A38/M5 transport spine, 
recognising that investment would have benefits for the whole of the HotSW area and 
wider south west.   

(g) Brexit Resilience Opportunities Group. The Joint Committee has consistently lobbied 
Government that any powers that move back from the EU under Brexit must not stop at 
Whitehall.   This senior officer group was established by the Joint Committee to research 
and advise on the opportunities and risks to the HotSW.  The Group has been collating 
evidence on some of the key risks and opportunities for our unique economy and has 
conducted research in the following areas:  workforce, construction industry, agriculture 
and land management; food and farming, fisheries and post Brexit funding to support the 
economy.  The Group is also collating the risk and impact analysis of Brexit on local 
government such as service delivery and community resilience. The Group has fed directly 
into the Local Government Association briefing papers and to key Government 
departments to raise the profile of the area. With the Brexit departure date looming and 
several ‘deal’ scenarios still possible, this work has become ever more important.  A Brexit 

Page 9

http://www.hotswjointcommittee.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/HotSW-Draft-Delivery-Plan-October-2018.pdf
http://www.hotswjointcommittee.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/HotSW-Draft-Delivery-Plan-October-2018.pdf
http://www.hotswjointcommittee.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/HotSW-Opportunities-Prospectus-October-2018.pdf
http://www.hotswjointcommittee.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/HotSW-Opportunities-Prospectus-October-2018.pdf


Joint Regional Sounding Board event planned, as part of the 12th November LEP 
Conference, will be an opportunity for business and public sector to engage with 
Government representatives from Defra, BEIS, and MHCLG on preparedness.  The Group 
is working with Cornwall on issues of mutual interest and concern. 

(h) Sub-National Transport Body.  Linked to the Joint Committee’s work on infrastructure is 
the imminent establishment of a South West Peninsula Shadow Sub-National Transport 
Body (covering Somerset, Devon, Cornwall, Plymouth and Torbay) which will develop a 
sub-national Transport Strategy to work with Government to deliver investment in our 
major transport infrastructure.  In the short-term this will be an informal partnership, 
however a current ‘ask’ of Government is that they endorse the creation of a statutory 
Sub-National Transport Body for the Peninsula, and a separate body for the South West 
around the east of the region.  These two new transport bodies will provide a platform for 
strategic discussions with Government on priorities for the region over the long term. 

Next steps

2.2 In addition to what is outlined above, the Joint Committee / LEP partnership will:

(a) Develop an Investment Framework for the Delivery Plan so that priorities for delivery 
and project opportunities can be delivered via investment from a range of sources.

(b) Review the roles and functions of both bodies through a governance review to 
acknowledge the revised and enhanced focus given to LEPs by the Government. 
This work will include a review of the management support arrangements. The Joint 
Committee and the LEP will continue to share responsibilities across the Productivity 
Strategy and the Delivery Plan with the LEP leading on areas closely linked to the 
LIS and the Joint Committee leading on other areas such as housing and 
infrastructure. The need for close collaboration between the two has never been 
more important as we look to further influence Government policy and actions over 
the next 12 months and beyond.

3. Local Industrial Strategy   

3.1 The inclusion of the HotSW LEP area in the second wave of areas to benefit from working 
with the Government to develop their Local Industrial Strategies (LIS) is a considerable 
achievement for the Joint Committee and the LEP.  The first wave ’trailblazers’ were the 
urban conurbations of Greater Manchester, the West Midlands and Cambridge-Milton 
Keynes-Oxford. The partnership had been pushing to be in the second wave and had raised 
the ask with Government Ministers and officials over a number of months. It was therefore 
very welcome that HotSW was announced in July as being part of wave 2.

 
3.2 By working closely with Government to develop our Local Industrial Strategy we will be able 

to jointly agree the long term transformational opportunities that will help deliver the asks 
specific to our area and influence wider Government policy and delivery.   

3.3 Local Industrial Strategies will focus on the foundations of productivity and identify 
transformational opportunities with partners across Ideas, People, Infrastructure, Business 
Environment and Place.  The Strategy will be led by local people and businesses, allowing 
local leaders to harness the strengths of their own areas; ensure that the benefits of growth 
are realised by all; and provide the right conditions for improving the prosperity of 
communities throughout the area.

Page 10



3.4  Ultimate approval of the LIS rests with the LEP in collaboration with the Government.   The 
LIS guidance requires the LEP to collaborate on the development of the LIS with a range of 
stakeholders including the local authorities and other partners. 

3.5 The LEP’s proposed timetable is to have the final LIS agreed between the LEP and the 
Government by June 2019. Fortunately, HotSW partners are better placed than many areas 
to meet this timetable as the work done by the Joint Committee and the LEP to build and test 
the evidence base for the Productivity Strategy and Delivery Plan has set the foundation; the 
LIS will be a natural extension of this.  

3.6 The Joint Committee is ideally placed to provide both collective and council level input into 
the development of the LIS, although final approval rests with the LEP. The validity and 
positioning of the document would be immeasurably strengthened by the involvement and 
general endorsement of all the constituent authorities, and by other partners including the 
business community.  To enable the development of the LIS to be taken forward at pace, and 
to demonstrate alignment with partners across the area, it is proposed that local authority 
input is developed, coordinated and signed off by the Joint Committee.  The powers of (and 
delegations to) the Committee are tightly focussed around the Productivity Strategy under 
the current governance arrangements, so approval needs to be sought from the constituent 
authorities to formally delegate the Council’s responsibilities for contributing to and signing 
off the HotSW Local Industrial Strategy (LIS) to the Joint Committee. The recommendations 
provide the opportunity for the Council to influence and shape the LIS as well as provide 
content.  To ensure that there is wide buy-in to the development of the LIS across the 
constituent authorities, a portfolio holder engagement event is planned for 23 November 2018

4. Budget and Cost Sharing Agreement 

4.1 The Joint Committee has been kept informed of its budgetary position to provide assurance 
that it is operating within its budget.  This section of the report includes:

(a) a summary of the Committee’s current budget position for 2018/19 is at  Appendix B 
(b) a Budget and Cost Sharing Agreement (B&CSA) which is a development of the Inter-

Authority Agreement agreed by the constituent authorities at the time the Committee 
was established – Appendix B

(c) An indicative budget request for 2019/20 to the constituent authorities. 

4.2 Appendix B - summarises the position on the operating and support budget of the Committee. 
It shows a variation of the income for 2018/19 expected at the time of the Committee’s 
establishment with a larger than anticipated underspend carried forward from the work on 
devolution during the 2015 to 2018 period.  This together with the contributions agreed by 
the constituent authorities have given the Committee a larger than anticipated budget for 
2018/19.  

4.3 In terms of the anticipated spend for 2018/19 the current position suggests that the 
Committee will be able to operate within budget and should achieve an underspend to be 
carried forward to 2019/20 to help offset the future budget requirement for the Joint 
Committee.  The current underspend is around £33k. It should be noted however that not all 
commitments for 2018/19 have yet been identified.    

4.4 At the time of the Committee’s establishment the Inter Authority Agreement referred to the 
development of a B&CSA and included some headings to be included within it. Appendix B 
sets out the draft B&CSA.  It is a relatively simple document proportionate to the small size 
of the budget and the limited financial risk to each constituent authority.  It explains the role 
of the administering authority as well as the responsibilities of the constituent authorities.  The 
Joint Committee has approved the B&CSA and all Section 151 Officers of the constituent 

Page 11



authorities have been consulted on its contents. The document now requires the formal 
approval of the constituent authorities.

4.5 In terms of the Joint Committee’s budget for 2019/20 the work programme is unknown at this 
stage although a busy year is expected for the Committee to respond to Government policy 
initiatives and to support the Delivery Plan.  To assist the constituent authorities to plan budget 
commitments for 2019/20, the minimum contribution levels for 2019/20 are set out below and 
are at the same level as for 2018/19.  It is believed these contributions will generate sufficient 
budget to cover the costs of the administering authority to service the Joint Committee and 
leave a small surplus.  Every effort will be made to contain costs within budget but if work is 
subsequently identified for 2019/20 which cannot be met within budget or from another 
source, a further request for funding may be made to the constituent authorities (including in-
year in exceptional circumstances) but only against a costed proposal or plan of activity and 
after all other potential sources of funding have been exhausted..  

 County Councils - £10,500 
 Unitary Councils - £4,000 
 District Councils and National Parks £1,400 

5 Consultation, communication and engagement 

5.1 Under the Communications and Engagement Plan, members of the constituent authorities, 
partners and the public have been kept informed of developments with the Joint Committee 
through newsletters published after each formal meeting and press releases on significant 
issues of interest.  As we move towards Christmas, the Committee’s engagement plans 
include seeking the support of relevant Ministers and all local MPs for the Communications 
document and specifically our ‘asks’ of Government. This engagement campaign will 
continue and accelerate as we move into 2019.     

5.2 In addition the Committee has a website providing background information, links to latest 
news and publications and details of the membership.  This can be accessed at:  
http://www.hotswjointcommittee.org.uk/

6. Equality Considerations

6.1 No adverse impact on any protected groups.  

7. Public Health Considerations

7.1 There are no direct public health impacts of these recommendations.  However, public health 
considerations will be an important consideration in the development of the LIS recognising 
that there is a strong correlation between economic prosperity and health of the population.  

8. Risk Management Considerations

8.1 Given the participation in the Joint Committee as one of the constituent Local Authorities, the 
main risks are around failing to participate actively in this or any other related process, thus 
manifesting a failure of sub-regional or regional awareness of the Council’s specific economic 
and productivity concerns.  The risk from failing to participate is most likely to be a loss of the 
Council’s influence at regional level and an inability to draw attention to the area’s economic 
needs (across such areas as productivity, skills, infrastructure and related inward 
investment).  It would also weaken the wider partnership proposition, so affecting the ability 
of the HotSW partnership to speak with one voice and influence Government policy for the 
benefit of the wider area and including our residents, businesses and visitors.  

Page 12

http://www.hotswjointcommittee.org.uk/


9. Legal Considerations

9.1 The HotSW Joint Committee is a Joint Committee of the local authorities across Devon and 
Somerset that comprise the HotSW area and established under Sections 101 to 103 of the 
Local Government Act 1972 and all other enabling legislation to undertake the following:

9.2 The key purpose of the Joint Committee is to be the vehicle through which the HotSW 
partners will ensure that the desired increase in productivity across the area is achieved.  

9.3 The Committee is a single strategic public sector partnership providing cohesive, coherent 
leadership and governance to ensure delivery of the Productivity Strategy for the HotSW 
area.  The specific objectives of the Joint Committee are to:

- Improve the economy and the prospects for the region by bringing together the public, 
private and education sectors;

- Increase our understanding of the economy and what needs to be done to make it 
stronger;

- Improve the efficiency and productivity of the public sector;
- Identify and remove barriers to progress and maximise the opportunities/benefits 

available to the area from current and future government policy.
 

10. Financial Considerations

10.1 The direct costs to the constituent authorities are set out above and in Appendix B. In 
addition to this the constituent authorities and partners continue to input considerable 
amounts of officer time into the partnership on an ‘in kind’ basis.   The LEP continues to 
make a significant contribution to the work of the Committee and has met some direct costs. 

10.2 The constituent authorities are reminded that the Joint Committee continues to provide a 
relatively low-cost option to meet the partnership’s objectives compared to the Combined 
Authority alternative.  

11. Reason for Recommendation/Conclusion

11.1 It is essential that the local authorities contribute to the development and approval of the 
LIS working in collaboration with the LEP. The LIS will be a natural development of the 
Productivity Strategy and Delivery Plan for which the Joint Committee already has 
delegated authority, and therefore it would seem appropriate to formally extend this 
authority to the development and approval of the LIS to the Joint Committee on behalf of 
the constituent authorities.   

11.2 It is important that the constituent authorities are kept up to date on the Committee’s budget 
situation and make provision for the 2019/20 budget commitment.   It is also important that 
the Budget and Cost Sharing Agreement is formally agreed by the constituent authorities 
as part of the Committee’s governance arrangements.   

Background Papers

South Somerset District Council: 23 February 2017 (Minute 106 refers) 
South Somerset District Council: 18 January 2018 (Minute 97 refers)

Page 13



 

APPENDIX A

Heart of the South West Partnership’s key strategic asks of Government

As part of the partnership’s increased lobbying with MPs and with reference to the 
Great South West Partnership several ‘policy asks’ of Government have been 
identified to coincide with party conferences and the Autumn Budget. These will be 
socialised over the next few months and are: 
 
1. Recognition of the Great South West Partnership in the Autumn Budget 

Statement together with a commitment to co-design a Rural Deal - a ‘Rural 
Productivity Partnership’ with GSW following publication of Rural Productivity 
Commission Report earlier in the year 

2. Strategic Connectivity 
a. Confirmation of Sub National Transport Body/ (ies)
b. Peninsula Rail priorities – e.g. commitment for funding Dawlish
c. Funding commitment for A303 improvements
d. Superfast Broadband and 5G trials
e. Joint working with the National Infrastructure Commission on an A38/M5 

corridor study to explore how we can unlock our full potential and 
accelerate growth to transform our region.

3. Transforming Cities and Strength in Places bids agreed 

4. EU Fisheries underspend proposal: an offer to work with Government to develop 
a proposal to utilise the projected underspend in the current EU Fisheries budget.

5. Nuclear Sector Deal (and others specifically Maritime and Defence) to have clear 
place-based elements/funding, recognising the HotSW opportunities.

6. Local Industrial Strategy specific: encourage joint working with WECA on Wave 2 
Local Industrial Strategies particularly around connectivity and Smart 
specialisations e.g. Nuclear and Aerospace.

Page 14



 

APPENDIX B

BUDGET STATEMENT – 2018/19

Costs 

At the time the Joint Committee (JC) was established it was estimated that its 
operating and support costs for 2018/19 (and to cover the remainder of 2017/18) 
would be £89,000 - excluding in-kind officer support. This estimate comprised:

1. £25,000 for work the Joint Committee would wish to commission to support 
the delivery of its work programme

2. £24,000 for the Brexit Resilience and Opportunities Group Secretariat

3. £40,000 for the Administering Authority to undertake its duties. 

Budget

Current budget position summary:

18/19 Budget = £117k (an 
increase of £25k over the 
original estimate)

18/19 Expenditure - £76.4k (as at 24/10/18)

1. £67k - devolution 
budget carry forward (as 
against the estimate of 
£42k) – transferred from 
PCC to SCC  

2. £50k - funding 
contributions from the 
constituent authorities 

1 £40k - for Administrative Authority costs 
including: direct meeting costs (including 
refreshments); staffing costs directly relating to 
HotSW meetings; JC communications and 
marketing; micro-site development 

2 £11.3k - support costs of the Brexit Resilience 
Opportunities Group (BROG) including 
seconded part-time officer support (against an 
original budget allocation of £24k)

3 £6k – costs of Housing Summit
4 £9.8k – housing consultancy support
5 £9.3k – national corridor infrastructure corridor 

consultancy support 

Page 15



 

BUDGET AND COST SHARING AGREEMENT

As part of the new Joint Committee (JC) working arrangements, the following clause 
was agreed in relation to the costs of operation of the Joint Committee. This clause 
was in the Inter-Authority Agreement.  

How is the budget set and agreed each year?

In the February preceding each financial year, in consultation with the Somerset 
County Council Finance Advisory Team, the SCC Strategic Manager - Partnership 
Governance on behalf of the PMO will detail a budget plan for the JC income and 
expenditure.  This will establish estimated amounts for that financial year and the 
timing of those financial transactions.  This will be submitted by the administering 
authority to the Joint Committee for recommendation to the Constituent Authorities 
(CA) for approval.

Each CA will pay their agreed contribution to the Administering Authority (AA) in a 
timely manner on receipt of invoice details. 

4.0   JC Finance

4.1 The JC’s budgetary arrangements shall be detailed in a budget and cost 
sharing agreement to be agreed by all the Constituent Authorities annually on the 
recommendation of the JC and in advance of the financial year.  The only exception to 
this will be in the JC’s first year of operation when the JC shall recommend a budget 
and cost sharing agreement to the Constituent Authorities for approval at the first 
opportunity following its establishment.    

4.2 The budget and cost sharing agreement shall cover:
(a) The responsibilities of the Constituent Authorities for providing funding for the 

JC
(b) The anticipated level of expenditure for the JC for the year ahead
(c) The cost sharing mechanism to be applied to the Constituent Authorities
(d) Details of how the budget will be set and agreed each year
(e) Who is to be responsible for maintaining financial records on behalf of the JC 

(the ‘accountable body’);
(f) What financial records are to be maintained;
(g) What financial reports are to be made, to whom and when;
(h) What arrangements and responsibilities are to be made for:

 auditing accounts;
 insurance including ensuring all partners have sufficient cover;

(i) How any financial assets held by the JC on behalf of the Constituent Authorities 
will be redistributed to the CAs in the event of the dissolution of the JC or in the 
event of a CA formally withdrawing from the CA.

Page 16



 

Who is to be responsible for maintaining financial records on behalf of the JC?

SCC Finance Advisory Team – Ian Tier, Finance Manager.

What financial records are to be maintained? 

Financial records, i.e. orders for supplies and services, payments made, invoices 
raised and receipts, will be kept electronically on the SCC financial system.  This 
incorporates purchase orders, invoice scans, cashiers receipts and sales invoices.

What financial reports are to be made, to whom and when?

SCC Finance Advisory will present a quarterly income and expenditure report to the 
SCC Strategic Manager – Partnership Governance.  This will be reported to the CEx 
Advisory Group for information. An income and expenditure report will be presented 
to the JC for information on at least an annual basis.

What arrangements and responsibilities are to be made for? 

 Auditing Accounts:  The AA’s accounts and audit arrangements will apply to JC 
business.   

 Insurance:
Each CA will ensure that it has sufficient insurance cover in place to provide 
protection for their members and officers participating in the work of the JC and in 
their capacity as officers or members of that authority.   The AA will ensure that it has 
sufficient insurance cover in place to cover the AA role.

How any financial assets held by the JC on behalf of the CA will be 
redistributed to the CAs in the event of the dissolution of the JC or in the event 
of a CA formally withdrawing from the CA?

Itemised records of contributions made by each of the CAs will be kept over the life 
of the JC.  In the event of the dissolution of the JC or in the event of a CA formally 
withdrawing from the CA having given the required notice, financial assets will be 
returned to the CA or CAs on a proportionate basis.

Page 17



Report of Executive Decisions

Director: Netta Meadows, Director (Strategy & Commissioning)
Lead Officer: Angela Cox, Democratic Services Specialist
Contact Details: angela.cox@southsomerset.gov.uk or (01935) 462148

This report is submitted for information and summarises decisions taken by the District 
Executive and Portfolio Holders since the last meeting of Council in November 2018.  The 
decisions are set out in the attached Appendix.   

Members are invited to ask any questions of the Portfolio Holders.

Background Papers

All Published

Val Keitch, Leader of the Council 
Angela Cox, Democratic Services Specialist

angela.cox@southsomerset.gov.uk or (01935) 462148

Page 18

Agenda Item 9



Appendix

Portfolio Subject Decision Taken By Date
Environment 
and Economic 
Development

Waste Fees and 
Charges 2019/20

The Portfolio Holder for Environment and Economic Development has agreed 
the proposed waste fees and charges as recommended by SSDC as set out 
below.

2018/19 2019/20

£55.40 for one year 
subscription

£56.93 for a one year 
subscription

Garden waste 
bin collection

£103.50 for two year 
subscription 

£106.81 for two year 
subscription

Garden waste 
sacks posted

£27.40 for 10 sacks £28.36 for 10 sacks

Bulky waste £43 up to 3 items. 
Additional items £11.90 
each up to a maximum 
of 5 items

£44.30 up to 3 items. 
Additional items £12.32 up 
to a maximum of 5 items

Portfolio 
Holder

09/11/2018

Environment 
and Economic 
Development

Somerset Waste 
Partnership Annual 
Report and Draft 
Business Plan 2019-
2024

District Executive is recommended to:-
a) approve the Somerset Waste Partnership’s Draft Business Plan 2019-24 

attached at Appendix A;
b) approve the projected budget for 2019/24 subject to the comments in section 

6 of the SWP Business plan relating to the finalisation of the budget.

District 
Executive

06/12/2018

Strategy and 
Policy

Heart of the South West 
(HotSW) – Joint 
Committee – Council 
Update

District Executive is being asked to recommend that Council:
a) Note the progress report setting out the work of the Heart of the South West 

(HotSW) Joint Committee since its establishment in March 2018;
b) Agree to delegate the development and endorsement of the HotSW Local 

Industrial Strategy (LIS) to the HotSW Joint Committee (noting that final 
approval of the HotSWLIS rests with the HotSW Local Enterprise 
Partnership (LEP) and the Government);

District 
Executive

06/12/2018

P
age 19



Portfolio Subject Decision Taken By Date
c) Note the Budget statement for 2018/19 set out in Appendix B, and that in 

accordance with the decisions taken at the time the Committee was 
established, the Council will be asked to make an annual budgetary 
provision to meet the support costs of the Joint Committee in line with the 
2018/19 contribution. Final clarification on any additional 2019/20 budget 
requirement will be provided following the completion of the review of the 
Joint Committee’s role, function and management support arrangements 
and development of its work programme for 2019/20;

d) Agree the Budget and Cost-sharing Agreement set out in Appendix B to this 
report.

Income 
Generation, 
Climate 
Change and 
Property

Commercial Assets 
Update Report

District Executive is recommended to:
a. Note progress made to date in acquiring new commercial investments;
b. Note progress being made in securing income from our existing assets;
c. Note progress being made in disposals and transfers of existing assets, 

resulting in a reduction of future liabilities associated with these assets.

District 
Executive

06/12/2018

Environment, 
Economic 
Development 
& 
Transformation

Economic Development 
Strategy (2019-2028) 
draft for public 
consultation

District Executive is recommended to:
i)  Agree the draft Economic Development Strategy 2019 - 2028 for public 

consultation;
ii) Delegate authority to the Portfolio Holder to make amendments to the EDS 

in consultation with the appropriate Director/s, and
iii) That unless there are substantial changes as a result of the consultation, 

agree that the draft Strategy go before Full Council for agreement following 
the end of the consultation period.

District 
Executive

06/12/2018

Strategic 
Planning 
(Place Making)

The ‘Making’ of the East 
Coker Neighbourhood 
Plan

District Executive is recommended to agree to the making of the East Coker 
Neighbourhood Plan.

District 
Executive

06/12/2018

P
age 20



Date of Next Meeting

Members are asked to note that the next scheduled meeting of the Full Council will take 
place on Thursday, 17th January 2019 in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, 
Brympton Way, Yeovil commencing at 7.30 p.m.

Page 21

Agenda Item 12


	Agenda
	6 Chairman's Engagements
	7 Presentation from the Income Generation Board
	8 Heart of the South West (HotSW) - Joint Committee - Council Update
	8 HOTSW JOINT COMMITTEE APPX A and B final 24.10.18

	9 Report of Executive Decisions
	12 Date of Next Meeting

